
CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, MARCH 13, 2014 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.   
 

2. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on     
February 27, 2014. (PAGE 1) 

 
3. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items). 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless 

objections are raised).   
 

Mayoral Appointment for Approval: Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee (PAGE 7) 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

5. PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION – ANNEXATION ORDINANCE: Consider approving 
Ordinance No. 3879 annexing the proposed Geist Addition to the City of Hays, Kansas. 
(PAGE 9) 
 

6. GEIST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF HAYS – REZONING: Consider approving 
Ordinance No. 3880 rezoning the (proposed) Geist Addition from Agricultural District           
(A-L) to Office and Institution District (C-O). (PAGE 17) 
 

7. GEIST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF HAYS – FINAL PLAT: Consider approving 
Resolution No. 2014-003 accepting the Final Plat of the Geist Addition. (PAGE 29) 
 

8. GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION – AWARD OF BID: Consider authorizing the 
City Manager to enter a contract with J Corp for the construction of street, water and 
sanitary sewer improvements within Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition to be funded 
through assessments to the Special Benefit District. (PAGE 39) 
 

9. CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT – 7TH ADDENDUM: Consider 
approving the Seventh Addendum to the Employment Agreement between the City of 
Hays and Toby R. Dougherty. (PAGE 47) 

 
10. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER (PAGE 51) 
 
11. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 

 



13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



MINUTES OF A MEETING  

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF  

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON FEBRUARY 27, 2014 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, February 27, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 

  Roll Call:  Present:   Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

 Chairperson Steward declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2.  MINUTES:  There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the 

regular session held on February 13, 2014; the minutes stand approved as 

presented. 

3.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT:  Finance Director Kim Rupp reported that month-

to-date general fund sales tax collections were at $591,886 which is a decrease 

of $38,583 as compared to last year. This puts the year-to-date general fund 

sales tax collections down -6.12%.  

The Finance/City Clerk’s Office invested $5,800,000 of maturing or 

renewing certificates with a weighted average interest rate of .42%. The portfolio 

of certificates of deposit on January 31, 2014 totaled $54,800,000 with a 

weighted average interest rate of .24%. The total balance of the Money Market 

account on January 31, 2014 was $1,000,000 with a current yield of .20%. Total 

investments are up $2,350,000 when compared to this time last year. 

 Ron Mellick moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, that the Financial 

Statement for the month of January 2014 be approved. 

Vote:  Ayes: Kent Steward   

Henry Schwaller IV 

1



    Eber Phelps 

    Shaun Musil 

    Ron Mellick 

4.  CITIZEN COMMENTS:  There were no comments 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  Chairperson Steward presented the following mayoral 

appointment, which will be presented for approval at the March 13, 2014 City 

Commission meeting. 

Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee 

Jean Gleichsner – Three-year term to expire May 1, 2017 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

6.  2014 STREET MAINTENANCE PROGRAM – AWARD OF BIDS:  Assistant 

Director of Public Works, John Braun presented the bids that have been received 

for 2014 Street Maintenance Projects.  Those projects include the chip seal of 

approximately six miles of asphalt streets, poly patch of asphalt streets in various 

locations, reconstruction of 11th Street from Cedar to Vine, and the repair of 

various brick streets in the City of Hays.  The amount of work proposed totals 

$458,566 awarded to three different contractors.  The work would be 

accomplished at various locations and various times throughout the year. 

 Shaun Musil moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to authorize the City Manager 

to enter into contracts for construction as follows, all to be funded out of Special 

Highway: 

 HI-Plains Sand in the amount of $219,784.60 for chip seal 

 Stripe and Seal in the amount of $124,872.16 for the reconstruction of 11th 

Street 

 Sweeney Pavement Maintenance in the amount of $42,400 for poly patch 

 Stripe and Seal in the amount of $71,509.40 for curb and brick repair 

2



Commissioner Schwaller was concerned stating we typically spend more 

on annual repairs than this, there are streets that need repaired and if we don’t 

get to them they will continue to deteriorate. 

City Manager Toby Dougherty explained the request was low because the 

city anticipates funds might be needed for other projects.  City staff can request 

more money later in the year if it is not needed to complete other projects. 

Vote:  Ayes: Kent Steward 

    Eber Phelps 

    Shaun Musil 

    Ron Mellick 

   No: Henry Schwaller IV 

7.  LEVEE TRAIL/KDOT The Bike Hays System includes a levee trail segment. 

Wilson & Company has engineered the levee system. Budgeted dollars will only 

provide a base segment from Main Street to the Fort Hays State University 

pedestrian bridge. The cost to complete the trail north from the pedestrian bridge 

to 8th Street is $226,000. Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) has 

agreed to cover $136,000 of this cost if the city will pay $91,000. The trail also 

serves as a cap protecting the levee. 

City staff recommends allocating Stormwater funds to maximize local 

funds with State dollars and complete the levee trail north to 8th Street. Should 

the Commission take advantage of this opportunity; staff will bring forward state 

agreements to proceed in the near future. 

The levee east of Main Street requires extensive earth work taking 

multiple years to complete. Therefore this segment will not be included in the 

initial trail construction as KDOT requires commitment in 2014. 

Ron Mellick moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to approve the allocation of 

an additional $91,000 from Stormwater flood control capital projects to complete 

the levee trail/cap project. 

Commissioner Schwaller stated if we did not have the KDOT match he 

would vote against this, but there is no guarantee that next year there will be a 

match. 

3



Vote:  Ayes: Kent Steward   

Henry Schwaller IV 

    Eber Phelps 

    Shaun Musil 

    Ron Mellick 

8.  STAGE TWO – WATER WARNING DECLARATION; The City of Hays 

drought response plan has three stages that include watch, warning and 

emergency.  Each level is triggered by criteria with specific response procedures 

relevant to the severity of the conditions. The plan’s purpose is to extend current 

sources by appropriately reacting to depletion during periods of drought.   

Stage 1: Water Watch was declared August 2012.  In an effort to mitigate 

the drought’s impact, incentives and measures have been utilized including the 

Cedar Bluff release, education, notifications, operational reduction of potable 

water, and creation of a second tier water conservation rate.   

Based on current well field data, drought forecast, and historical usage, 

staff is recommending a proactive Stage 2: Water Warning.     

Current rate of depletion will trigger Stage 2: Water Warning this summer 

and potentially Stage 3: Water Emergency in 2015. If a preemptive Stage 2: 

Water Warning is declared, water use becomes more restrictive, potentially 

extending the Water Emergency trigger. Furthermore, it allows proper 

preparation for spring planning season rather than allowing citizens to invest time 

and effort in lawns and gardens that may require elimination of watering in 

early/midsummer. 

Stage 2: Water Warning actions that affect citizens include: 

 Reduction of water usage just enough to keep the roots of the grass alive 

on all parks and ball fields that utilize potable water  

 No longer allow new irrigation connections to the potable water system 

 No outdoor water use between 10 a.m. and 9 p.m. 

 Second Conservation tier increased from $7.42 to $10.30 (this would 

affect March usage) 

4



Staff will ensure notifications, educational and management actions as 

required by the plan are met.  This includes increased efforts to promote wise 

water use and extend a notification to those higher water users. 

Sources are sufficient to last through many years of drought, assuming 

reactionary measures are enacted. Should Hays receive enough moisture to 

positively impact well levels for a constant period of time and projections warrant, 

a recommendation to Stage 1: Water Watch may occur. 

Chairperson Steward requested staff run some comparisons on water use 

for a pool and watering an average size lawn.  

 Eber Phelps moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to approve Resolution 

No. 2014-002 declaring Stage 2: Water Warning. 

Vote:  Ayes: Kent Steward   

Henry Schwaller IV 

    Eber Phelps 

    Shaun Musil 

    Ron Mellick 

 Commissioner Mellick stated it will be up to the community and how well 

they conserve water to keep us from going to a water emergency. 

9.  PROGRESS REPORT:  Assistant City Manager Paul Briseno presented a 

monthly report of city-related activities, services, and programs. 

10.  REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER:  The City Manager had no additional 

items to report on. 

11.  COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS:  Commissioner Phelps 

stated he will be visiting with each of the Commissioners regarding the water 

conference he attended. 

 Chairperson Steward had a citizen contact him about problems with noise 

and vandalism in his neighborhood; he would like to address the Commission 

regarding a possible solution at next week’s work session. 

12.  EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Henry Schwaller IV moved, Shaun Musil seconded, 

that the Governing Body recess to executive session at 7:35 p.m. for 30 minutes 

to discuss personnel matters and matters pertaining to attorney-client privileged 

5



information.  The executive session included the Commissioners, The City 

Manager, the Assistant City Manager, ant the City Attorney.  K.S.A. 75-4319 

authorizes the use of executive session to discuss the topics stated in the 

motion. 

Vote:  Ayes: Kent Steward   

Henry Schwaller IV 

    Eber Phelps 

    Shaun Musil 

    Ron Mellick 

 No action was taken during executive session. 

 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

 Submitted by: _____________________________________________ 

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

6



 
CITY OF HAYS 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
 

       COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 4               MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 

 
TOPIC: 
 
Mayoral Appointment for Approval 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider approving a Mayoral appointment to the Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following appointment was recommended by Mayor Steward at the February 27, 2014 City Commission 
meeting and is now being presented for approval. 
 
Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee  
 
Jean Gleichsner – 3-year term to expire 5-1-17 (1st term) 
  
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Mayor Steward 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application 

7



CITY OF HAYS 
APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
Email: jgleichs@fhsu.edu  
 
Date: 1/30/2014  
 
Name: Jean Gleichsner  
 
Address: 3313 Willow St, Hays, KS 67601  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-628-4023  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-625-0089  
 
Place of Employment: Fort Hays State University  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 25 years  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Ellis County Wellhead Protection 
Committee  
 
How much time could you devote per month: 3- 5 hrs  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain: NA  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: I have a great interest in water use and water quality.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: I have done numerous 
service-learning projects involving students I teach at FHSU with the community such 
as Sunrise Park Grass Display, Dan Rupp Park work, Humane Society of the High 
Plains Landscape Maintenance, storm drain marking in Hays and rain barrel 
construction.  
 

8



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5  MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Proposed Geist Addition Annexation 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 3879 for the annexation of the proposed Geist Addition as legally 
described within the ordinance. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The current owners of this property known as the proposed Geist Addition have submitted a 
signed consent to request annexation of the property under K.S.A. 12-520a.  The land is 
contiguous with the present City limits, and in fact is an island of un-annexed territory.  
Assuming annexation is approved, the owners intend to develop the property into commercial 
lots.  The plat approval and rezoning request are being considered under separate agenda 
items.  Staff recommends annexing this property due to its contiguous nature and plan for 
commercial growth along a major collector (22nd St.). 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends annexing this property due to its contiguous nature and plan for commercial 
growth along a major collector (22nd St.) 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Ordinance No. 3879 
Map of Area being Annexed 
Signed Consent to Annex 

 

9



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   March 6, 2014  
 
Subject:  Proposed Geist Addition Annexation  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The current owners of this property known as the proposed Geist Addition have 
submitted a signed consent to request annexation of the property under K.S.A. 12-520a.  
The land is contiguous with the present City limits, and in fact is an island of un-annexed 
territory.  Assuming annexation is approved, the owners intend to develop the property 
into commercial lots.  The plat approval and rezoning request are being considered under 
separate agenda items.  Staff recommends annexing this property due to its contiguous 
nature and plan for commercial growth along a major collector (22nd St.) 
 

Background  
The property has been in its current state as agricultural land/pasture ground long before 
the City was annexed around the property.  This property, the proposed Geist Addition, is 
often on the front row when it comes to discussing City limits.  It has been an island of 
un-annexed territory for many, many years creating a situation of property not under the 
jurisdiction of most City of Hays ordinances.  
 

Discussion 
The current owners of this property known as the proposed Geist Addition have 
submitted a signed consent to request annexation of the property under K.S.A. 12-520a. 
The property is currently in the platting stages as well as in the process of being rezoned.  
The land is contiguous with the present City limits.  The owners intend to develop the 
property into commercial lots.  Approval of the annexation will allow the property owner 
to receive full benefits of City services, including utilities and fire/police protection.  The 
plat approval and rezoning request are being considered under separate agenda items. 
 

Legal Consideration 
Annexation requires the City to extend services to the area annexed within a reasonable 
time.  There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City staff. 

 
 
 

10



Financial Consideration 
Annexing this property and allowing for its development will increase the property tax 
base for the City of Hays. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Annex the property as requested 
 Do not annex the property 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends annexing this property due to its contiguous nature and plan for 
commercial growth along a major collector (22nd St.) 
 

Action Requested 
Approve an ordinance for the annexation of the proposed Geist Addition as legally 
described within the ordinance. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Map of area being annexed 
Signed Consent to Annex 
Annexation Ordinance 
 

11



 ORDINANCE NO. 3879 
 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LAND TO THE CITY OF HAYS, 
KANSAS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the following described land adjoins the City of Hays, Kansas,   
 
 WHEREAS, written consent for annexation of the following described land, signed by all of 
the owners thereof, has been filed with the City of Hays, Kansas, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-520; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Hays, Kansas finds it advisable to annex such 
land. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Pursuant to K.S.A. 12-520(a)(7) the following described land is hereby annexed 
and made part of the City of Hays, Kansas: 
 

THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, 
RANGE 18 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF HAYS, COUNTY OF ELLIS, 
STATE OF KANSAS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF S 01o14'29" W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 59.82 FEET; THENCE S 88°45'31" E A DISTANCE 
OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 22ND STREET; 
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 3 COURSES; 
THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE N 46°03'55" E A DISTANCE OF 
35.46 FEET; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 691.94 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE 
FOLLOWING 5 COURSES; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 1097.21 FEET; THENCE S 
29°06'19" E A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 29°06’ 25" W A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 
666.99 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WHEATLAND AVENUE; THENCE S 01° 
18’ 18” W, ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 190.28 FEET TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, A FINAL PLAT TO SAID CITY OF HAYS; 
THENCE N 89°04'30" W, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, 
GOLDEN BELT SEVENTH ADDITION, AND GOLDEN BELT SIXTH ADDITION, ALL FINAL PLATS 
TO THE CITY OF HAYS, A DISTANCE OF 1858.85 FEET TO THE CITY LIMITS LINE; THENCE 
N 01°12'07” E, ALONG SAID CITY LIMITS LINE, A DISTANCE OF 189.24 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINS 8.05 ACRES, MORE OR LESS; 
 

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in 
the official city newspaper. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, this 13th 
day of March, 2014. 
 
 
 
              
       KENT L. STEWARD 
       Mayor 
 
 

12



ATTEST: 
 
       
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(seal) 

13



Geist Development

14

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Line

jrohr
Text Box
Geist Property



CITY OF HAYS

41ST ST

CA
NT

ER
BU

RY
 D

R

E 13TH ST

W 13TH ST

41ST ST

W 27TH ST E 27TH ST
MA

IN
 ST

OLD HWY 40

E 8TH ST

OLD HWY 40

AL
T 

18
3

HA
LL

 S
T

I-70

VI
NE

 S
T

GE
NE

RA
L H

AY
S 

RD

RO
TH

 A
VE

240TH AVE

 MOUNT PLEASANT RD

 SPRING HILL RD
230TH AVE

GOLF COURSE RD

ALT 183

VI
NE

 S
T  C

OM
ME

RC
E 

PK
W

Y

I-70

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION - ANNEXATION

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION

ANNEXATION

15



16



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6  MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Geist Addition Rezoning (A-L to C-O) 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 3880 rezoning the subject property (proposed Geist Addition) from  
A-L to C-O as legally described within the ordinance. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The developer of the proposed Geist Addition has submitted a request asking that the 
property be rezoned from Agricultural District (A-L) to Office and Institution District (C-O).  A 
public hearing was conducted on February 17, 2014 at the regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission and it was recommended by a vote of 6-0 that the rezoning be approved.  
Examples of uses allowed by right in the C-O district are hospitals and other medical related 
offices/clinics, religious or educational institutions, professional office buildings, parks, 
libraries, nursing homes, and day care centers.  Staff, as well as the Planning Commission, 
recommends approving this rezoning request from A-L to C-O as submitted. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approving this rezoning request from A-L to C-O as submitted. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Planning Commission recommends approving this rezoning request from A-L to C-O as 
submitted. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Ordinance No. 3880 
Map(s) 
Planning Commission Findings of Fact 

 

17



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   March 6, 2014  
 
Subject:  Geist Addition Rezoning (A-L to C-O)  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The developer of the proposed Geist Addition has submitted a request asking that the 
property be rezoned from Agricultural District (A-L) to Office and Institution District (C-
O).  A public hearing was conducted on February 17, 2014 at the regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission and it was recommended by a vote of 6-0 that the rezoning be 
approved.  Examples of uses allowed by right in the C-O district are hospitals and other 
medical related offices/clinics, religious or educational institutions, professional office 
buildings, parks, libraries, nursing homes, and day care centers.  Staff, as well as the 
Planning Commission, recommends approving this rezoning request from A-L to C-O as 
submitted. 
 

Background  
The property, located along 22nd St. south of Hays Medical Center, has remained vacant 
as zoned since it was open farm ground many years ago.  There is currently one 
residential structure on the property.  The owner now wishes to develop the property into 
viable commercial lots. 
 

Discussion 
The developer of the proposed Geist Addition has submitted a request asking that the 
property be rezoned from Agricultural District (A-L) to Office and Institution District (C-
O). This property is contiguous with other C-O zoned property.   
 
Uses within the C-O district, which are primarily institutional and professional service 
types of uses, are “intended to be compatible with adjoining residential districts” (excerpt 
from City Ord. Sec. 71-434).  The property is contiguous along the south boundary with 
existing single-family and multi-family zoned districts.  Examples of uses allowed by 
right in the C-O district are hospitals and other medical related offices/clinics, religious or 
educational institutions, professional office buildings, parks, libraries, nursing homes, and 
day care centers.  Residential uses are not a use-by-right and are allowed ONLY with a 
special use permit issued by the Board of Zoning Appeals.  The Comprehensive Plan 
identifies this area as medium-density residential, however the proposed use (Office and 

18



Institution District) is as compatible to surrounding uses as the residential use identified 
in the comprehensive plan. 
 
A public hearing was conducted on February 17, 2014 at the regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission.  All adjacent property owners within 200’ of the subject property 
were notified of the public hearing.  The item was approved 6-0 and a recommendation 
was made by the Planning Commission to the City Commission to approve the rezoning.  
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
None identified at this time. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Approve the rezoning request from A-L to C-O as recommended by the Planning 
Commission and City staff 

 Send the request back to the Planning Commission for further consideration with 
specific basis for further review 

 Deny the rezoning request from A-L to C-O (Requires a 2/3 majority vote to 
overturn the P.C. recommendation) 
 

Recommendation 
Staff, as well as the Planning Commission, recommends approving this rezoning request 
from A-L to C-O as submitted. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve an ordinance rezoning the subject property (proposed Geist Addition) from A-L 
to C-O as legally described within the ordinance. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Map(s) 
Planning Commission Findings of Fact 
Ordinance 
 

19



ORDINANCE NO. 3880     
 
AN ORDINANCE REZONING A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION THIRTY-FIVE (35), TOWNSHIP 
THIRTEEN (13) SOUTH, RANGE EIGHTEEN (18) WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. IN 
ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF S 01o14'29" W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 59.82 FEET; THENCE S 88°45'31” E A 
DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 22ND 
STREET AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 
5.00 FEET; THENCE N 46o03'55" E A DISTANCE OF 35.46 FEET; THENCE S 89°06’25” E A 
DISTANCE OF 1789.15 FEET; THENCE S 29°06'19" E A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; 
THENCE S 89o06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET; THENCE N 29°06'25" W A 
DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89o06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 666.99 FEET TO 
THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WHEATLAND AVENUE; THENCE S 01°18'18" W, 
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 190.28 FEET TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, A FINAL PLAT TO SAID CITY OF 
HAYS; THENCE N 89°04'30" W, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH 
ADDITION, GOLDEN BELT SEVENTH ADDITION, AND GOLDEN BELT SIXTH ADDITION, 
ALL FINAL PLATS TO THE CITY OF HAYS, A DISTANCE OF 2580.92 FEET TO THE EAST 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CANTERBURY DRIVE; THENCE N 01o14'29" E, ALONG SAID 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 163.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. CONTAINS 11.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
FROM “A-L” AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO “C-O" OFFICE AND INSTITUTION 
DISTRICT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Hays Area Planning Commission, after due and legal notice 
published in the Hays Daily News, the official city newspaper, on January 24, 2014, 
and after a public hearing held in conformity with such notice on February 17, 2014, 
did, on the last-mentioned date, recommend to the Governing Body of the City of 
Hays, Kansas, the re-zoning of the following-described real estate: 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION THIRTY-FIVE (35), 
TOWNSHIP THIRTEEN (13) SOUTH, RANGE EIGHTEEN (18) WEST OF THE 6TH 
P.M. IN ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

DISTRICT COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER; THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF S 01o14'29" W, ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 59.82 FEET; THENCE S 
88°45'31” E A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
EAST 22ND STREET AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG SAID 
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES; THENCE S 89°06'25" 
E A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE N 46o03'55" E A DISTANCE OF 35.46 FEET; 
THENCE S 89°06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 1789.15 FEET; THENCE S 29°06'19" E A 
DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89o06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 29°06'25" W A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89o06'25" E A DISTANCE 
OF 666.99 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WHEATLAND AVENUE; 
THENCE S 01°18'18" W, ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
190.28 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, A FINAL PLAT 
TO SAID CITY OF HAYS; THENCE N 89°04'30" W, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF 

20



GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, GOLDEN BELT SEVENTH ADDITION, AND GOLDEN 
BELT SIXTH ADDITION, ALL FINAL PLATS TO THE CITY OF HAYS, A DISTANCE OF 
2580.92 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CANTERBURY DRIVE; THENCE N 
01o14'29" E, ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 163.83 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS 11.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
 

from “A-L” AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT to “C-O" OFFICE AND INSTITUTION 
DISTRICT; 

 
WHEREAS, upon due consideration, it appears that the best interests of the 

City of Hays, Kansas, will be subserved by the following recommendation of the 
Hays Area Planning Commission,  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
Section 1. That the following-described real estate, to-wit: 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION THIRTY-FIVE (35), 
TOWNSHIP THIRTEEN (13) SOUTH, RANGE EIGHTEEN (18) WEST OF THE 6TH 
P.M. IN ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
DISTRICT COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER; THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF S 01o14'29" W, ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 59.82 FEET; THENCE S 
88°45'31” E A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
EAST 22ND STREET AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG SAID 
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES; THENCE S 89°06'25" E 
A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE N 46o03'55" E A DISTANCE OF 35.46 FEET; THENCE 
S 89°06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 1789.15 FEET; THENCE S 29°06'19" E A DISTANCE OF 
25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89o06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET; THENCE N 29°06'25" W 
A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89o06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 666.99 FEET TO 
THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WHEATLAND AVENUE; THENCE S 01°18'18" W, 
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 190.28 FEET TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, A FINAL PLAT TO SAID CITY OF HAYS; 
THENCE N 89°04'30" W, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH 
ADDITION, GOLDEN BELT SEVENTH ADDITION, AND GOLDEN BELT SIXTH ADDITION, 
ALL FINAL PLATS TO THE CITY OF HAYS, A DISTANCE OF 2580.92 FEET TO THE EAST 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CANTERBURY DRIVE; THENCE N 01o14'29" E, ALONG SAID 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 163.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. CONTAINS 11.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
 
From “A-L” AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT to “C-O" OFFICE AND INSTITUTION 
DISTRICT. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect upon its publication in the Hays Daily 
News, the official city newspaper. 
 

 
PASSED by the Governing Body on the 13th day of March, 2014. 

 
 

21



__________________________ 
Kent L. Steward, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 

22



CITY OF HAYS

41ST ST

CA
NT

ER
BU

RY
 D

R

E 13TH ST

W 13TH ST

41ST ST

W 27TH ST E 27TH ST
MA

IN
 ST

OLD HWY 40

E 8TH ST

OLD HWY 40

AL
T 

18
3

HA
LL

 S
T

I-70

VI
NE

 S
T

GE
NE

RA
L H

AY
S 

RD

RO
TH

 A
VE

240TH AVE

 MOUNT PLEASANT RD

 SPRING HILL RD
230TH AVE

GOLF COURSE RD

ALT 183

VI
NE

 S
T  C

OM
ME

RC
E 

PK
W

Y

I-70

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION - REZONING

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION

REZONING

23



Zoning

24

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Callout
GEIST ADDITION



Zoning

25

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Text Box
This map shows other existing near-by property zoned as C-O and R-2, showing the compatibility of the two zoning districts.  Historically it has worked very well to have these two zoning districts abut one another.  The C-O district has the lowest intensity of use of any commercial zoning district.



P:\Agenda Materials\2014\03-06-14\Geist Addition Rezoning PC Finding of Fact 1.5.doc  

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDING OF FACT 
 

1. CASE NO.:  14-01Z          FILING FEE PAID:  Publication Fee of $140.00 
 
2. DATE FILED:  01-13-2014   
 
3. DATE ADVERTISED FOR HEARING:  01-24-2014  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING DATE:  02/17/2014 
 
5. APPLICANT’S NAME:  Alfred Geist        

   
6. LOCATION OF PROPERTY:  South of 22nd between Canterbury Drive and 

Wheatland Avenue 
 
7. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:  Tract in the Southwest Quarter of Section 35-

T13S-R18W, Ellis County, Kansas. 
 
8. PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY:  Agriculture 
 
9. PRESENT ZONING:  “A-L” REQUESTED ZONING:  “C-O” 
 

 
1. CHARACTER OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  Office & Institution District (Hays Medical Center) 
 
 SOUTH:  Multi-family & Single Family 
 
 EAST:     Two-Family & Single-Family 
 
 WEST:     Single Family  
 
2. THE ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  “C-O” 
 
 SOUTH:    ”R-4” & “R-2” 
 
 EAST:       “R-3”  
 
 WEST:       “R-1”  
 

26



P:\Agenda Materials\2014\03-06-14\Geist Addition Rezoning PC Finding of Fact 1.5.doc  

3. CONSIDERATION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF PERMANENT 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF:    The Area is identified as medium density 
residential in the current adopted Comprehensive Plan; although with 
Office and Institution Zoning classification to the north, the property would 
be well suited for Office and Institution Zoning Land Uses.  It is surrounded 
on the other three sides with residential zoning classifications ranging from 
single-family to multi-family uses.  Staff recommends approval of the 
rezoning request. 
 
A. DEDICATION OR RESERVATION NEEDED FOR: 

1. DRAINAGE:  Provided 
2. STREETS:  Yes 
3. UTILITY EASEMENTS: 

a. ELECTRICITY:  Yes 
b. GAS:  Yes 
c. SEWERS:  Yes 
d. WATER:  Yes 

4. SHOULD PLATTING BE REQUIRED:   In the Platting Process 
 

B. TRAFFIC CONDITIONS: 
1. CLASSIFICATION OF STREET ON WHICH PROPERTY FRONTS:  

Collector/Commercial 
2. RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH:  70’  
3. SIGHT DISTANCE:  OK 
4. TURNING MOVEMENTS:  OK 
5. COMMENTS ON TRAFFIC:  Local/Commercial 

 
4. THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE USES TO WHICH IT HAS 

BEEN RESTRICTED:  The property is an island of un-annexed territory that 
should be brought into the City Limits for orderly development to occur. 
With the area being located adjacent to a collector street, this is an area 
of projected/anticipated commercial growth. 

 
5. THE EXTENT TO WHICH REMOVAL OF THE RESTRICTIONS WILL DETRIMENTALLY 

AFFECT NEARBY PROPERTY:  Removal of the agricultural designation should 
not have a negative affect on nearby properties. 

 
6. THE LENGTH OF TIME THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS REMAINED VACANT AS 

ZONED:  With the exception of agricultural uses, the property has been in 
its current state since the adoption of 3-mile zoning regulations – 40 plus 
years. 

 
7. THE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE BY THE 

DESTRUCTION OF THE VALUE OF THE NEIGHBORING PROPERTY, AS 

27



P:\Agenda Materials\2014\03-06-14\Geist Addition Rezoning PC Finding of Fact 1.5.doc  

COMPARED TO THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED ON THE INDIVIDUAL LANDOWNER:  
Neighboring property values should tend to increase as development 
takes place. The impact of the rezoning, if approved, should not be 
destructive to neighboring property and should actually enhance the 
surrounding area as development occurs 

 
8. THE CONFORMANCE OF THE REQUESTED CHANGE TO THE ADOPTED OR 

RECOGNIZED MASTER PLAN BEING UTILIZED BY THE CITY:  The property in 
question has been identified on the adopted Comprehensive Plan as 
medium density residential; although with the Commercial and Office 
Institution zoning classification to the north, the zoning makes it fitting for 
the development.  The proposed C-O district is defined as being 
compatible with adjacent residential districts. 

 
 The request for the Commercial and Office district zoning classification as 

presented does fit the overall scheme of the adopted Comprehensive 
Plan and staff does recommend approval of the zoning request. 

 
       
  
       
 
 

28



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Geist Addition Final Plat  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2014-003 accepting the Final Plat known as Geist Addition. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The owners of the proposed Geist Addition have submitted a final plat for consideration.  The 
plat is comprised of 4 lots slated for commercial development.  All public utilities are in place 
allowing for development of this property including public water and sewer.  All required and 
necessary areas of right-of-way and/or easements are being dedicated with this plat as 
requested by staff and the Planning Commission.  Staff has reviewed the proposed plat 
which has also been reviewed by the Utility Advisory Committee.  On February 17, 2014 the 
final plat was reviewed and approved (6-0 vote) by the Hays Area Planning Commission.  
Staff, as well as the Planning Commission, recommends approving this plat as submitted. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approving this plat as submitted. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Planning Commission recommends approving this plat as submitted. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Resolution No. 2014-003 
Final Plat 

 

29



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   March 6, 2014  
 
Subject:  Geist Addition Final Plat  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The owners of the proposed Geist Addition have submitted a final plat for consideration.  
The plat is comprised of 4 lots slated for commercial development.  All public utilities 
are in place allowing for development of this property including public water and sewer.  
All required and necessary areas of right-of-way and/or easements are being dedicated 
with this plat as requested by staff and the Planning Commission.  Staff has reviewed the 
proposed plat which has also been reviewed by the Utility Advisory Committee.  On 
February 17, 2014 the final plat was reviewed and approved (6-0 vote) by the Hays Area 
Planning Commission.  Staff, as well as the Planning Commission, recommends 
approving this plat as submitted. 
 

Background  
The property has been in its current state as agricultural land/pasture ground long before 
adjacent property was annexed into the City. 
 

Discussion 
The owners of the proposed Geist Addition have submitted a final plat for consideration.  
The property is adjacent to previously platted property and has become an island of 
undeveloped property.  Approval of this plat will allow for development of the property.  
The plat is comprised of 4 lots slated for commercial development.  The plat does include 
a dedication of twenty foot of right-of-way along Canterbury Dr. as required by City 
ordinance.  All other necessary right-of-way and/or easements are already in place or 
being dedicated with this plat. 
 
All public utilities are in place allowing for development of this property including public 
water and sewer.  The existing drainage way, which is also 100-year flood plain, has been 
dedicated as such and will be preserved through the platting process.  This drainage area 
will be maintained by the City along with the remainder of the drainage area already 
being maintained by the Parks Dept.  Staff from the Parks Department has been apprised 
of this proposed development and agrees with the proposal as submitted. 
 

30



Access to the platted lots will be controlled per the access requirements and restrictions 
of the current Development Policy.  This will be handled as proposals for the 
development of specific lots are submitted for review.  Certain access restrictions are in 
place and denoted on the plat. 
 
Staff has reviewed the proposed plat which has also been reviewed by the Utility 
Advisory Committee.  On February 17, 2014 the final plat was reviewed and approved 
(6-0 vote) by the Hays Area Planning Commission.   
 

Legal Consideration 
Upon being presented with proof that the owners of the property to be platted are the 
owners of record and that the existing plat has been vacated, there are no known legal 
obstacles to the proposed action. 

 

Financial Consideration 
This action has no known negative financial effect on the City at large. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Approve the plat as submitted 
 Do not approve the plat 

 

Recommendation 
Staff, as well as the Planning Commission, recommends approving this plat as submitted. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the resolution accepting the final plat known as Geist Addition. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Final Plat 
Resolution 
 

31



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-003 
 
 

GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
 WHEREAS, Alfred Geist, an individual, has presented to the Governing Body of 
the City of Hays, Kansas, a certain plat of GEIST ADDITION situated within the 
corporate limits of the City of Hays, Kansas, being lots, streets, alleys comprising the 
following described real estate, to-wit: 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION THIRTY-FIVE (35), 
TOWNSHIP THIRTEEN (13) SOUTH, RANGE EIGHTEEN (18) WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. 
IN ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

DISTRICT COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER; THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF S 01O14'29" W, ALONG THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 59.82 FEET; THENCE S 88°45'31” E A 
DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 22ND 
STREET AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES; THENCE S 89°06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 46O03'55" E A DISTANCE OF 35.46 FEET; THENCE S 89°06’25” E A DISTANCE OF 
1789.15 FEET; THENCE S 29°06'19" E A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 89O06’25” E A 
DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET; THENCE N 29°06'25" W A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE S 
89O06'25" E A DISTANCE OF 666.99 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
WHEATLAND AVENUE; THENCE S 01°18'18" W, ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A 
DISTANCE OF 190.28 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, A 
FINAL PLAT TO SAID CITY OF HAYS; THENCE N 89°04'30" W, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF 
GOLDEN BELT EIGHTH ADDITION, GOLDEN BELT SEVENTH ADDITION, AND GOLDEN 
BELT SIXTH ADDITION, ALL FINAL PLATS TO THE CITY OF HAYS, A DISTANCE OF 2580.92 
FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CANTERBURY DRIVE; THENCE N 01O14'29" E, 
ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 163.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 11.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
 
to be known as GEIST ADDITION to the City of Hays, Kansas; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the said plat has been examined and considered by the Hays Area 
Planning Commission of the City of Hays, Kansas; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Attorney of the City of Hays, Kansas, has found that the 
proposed plat conforms to the requirements of the statutes in such matters made and 
provided; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, that the City of Hays, Kansas, hereby approves the plat of 
GEIST ADDITION to the City of Hays, Kansas, and the City Clerk is instructed to 
endorse such approval on said plat. 
 
 Passed and adopted by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, this 13th 

day of March, 2014. 
 
 

32



_______________________________  
Kent L. Steward – Mayor  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY_____________________________ 
      Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

33



CITY OF HAYS

41ST ST

CA
NT

ER
BU

RY
 D

R

E 13TH ST

W 13TH ST

41ST ST

W 27TH ST E 27TH ST
MA

IN
 ST

OLD HWY 40

E 8TH ST

OLD HWY 40

AL
T 

18
3

HA
LL

 S
T

I-70

VI
NE

 S
T

GE
NE

RA
L H

AY
S 

RD

RO
TH

 A
VE

240TH AVE

 MOUNT PLEASANT RD

 SPRING HILL RD
230TH AVE

GOLF COURSE RD

ALT 183

VI
NE

 S
T  C

OM
ME

RC
E 

PK
W

Y

I-70

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION - PLATTING

PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION

FINAL PLAT

34



PROPOSED GEIST ADDITION

35



GEIST ADDITION

36



}

}

}

}
}

GEIST ADDITION

}

}

37



 

38



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition – Award of Bid 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the amount of $548,715.20 
for construction of street, water, and sanitary sewer improvements within the Golden Belt 
Estates 5th Addition to be funded through assessments to the special benefit district. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Western Plains Service Corporation has petitioned the City for street, water, and sanitary 
sewer improvements to an area containing 34 lots within Blocks 1 and 2 of the Golden Belt 
Estates 5th Addition, and resolutions authorizing those improvements were previously 
approved by the City Commission.  Bids were opened on February 19, 2014 for the 
construction of the improvements, the J Corp being the low bidder.  Pavement was bid with 
options for concrete or asphalt, with concrete being the lowest cost option.  City staff 
recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the amount 
of $548,715.20 for the construction of concrete street, water, and sanitary sewer 
improvements within the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition to be funded through assessments 
to the special benefit district. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends awarding the contract to the low bidders as presented. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Location Maps 
Bid Tabulation 

 

39



 

 

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   March 6, 2014  
 
Subject:  Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition – Award of Bid  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

Summary 
Western Plains Service Corporation has petitioned the City for street, water, and sanitary 
sewer improvements to an area containing 34 lots within Blocks 1 and 2 of the Golden 
Belt Estates 5th Addition, and resolutions authorizing those improvements were 
previously approved by the City Commission.  Bids were opened on February 19, 2014 
for the construction of the improvements, the J Corp being the low bidder.  Pavement was 
bid with options for concrete or asphalt, with concrete being the lowest cost option.  City 
staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the 
amount of $548,715.20 for the construction of concrete street, water, and sanitary sewer 
improvements within the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition to be funded through 
assessments to the special benefit district. 
 

Background  
This particular plat was approved in June 2013 with 34 single family residential lots on 
two cul-de-sacs: Jagger Court and Danby Lane.  All infrastructure has been designed 
Ruder Engineering and will be constructed to City Standards.  The City will take over 
maintenance responsibilities upon completion of this project.  There are no over-sizing 
costs to the City for this project.   
 
This is a continuation and the final phase of the Golden Belt Estates Addition being 
developed by Western Plains Service Corporation. 
 

Discussion 
Bids for this project were opened on February 19, 2014 with bids coming from APAC 
and J Corp.  Bids were structured to allow for either asphalt or concrete pavement.  J 
Corp submitted the low bid in the amount of $548,715.20 for concrete pavement.  J Corp 
did not submit an asphalt option.  APAC submitted bids for both asphalt and concrete; 
however both options from APAC were higher than the bid from J Corp.  All bids were 
below the engineer’s estimate of $697,639. The tabulation of bids is attached.   
 
 

40



 

 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
The developer is financing the improvements through the establishment of a special 
benefit district.  100% of the costs will be assessed to the 34 lots, per an agreement from 
January 27, 2005 pertaining to the Golden Belt Estates Addition. 
 
There is no over sizing or other costs to be funded otherwise. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Award contract as recommended by staff 
 Provide alternate direction to City Staff 
 Do nothing 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends entering a contract with the low bidder as presented. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the amount of 
$548,715.20 for construction of street, water, and sanitary sewer improvements within 
the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition to be funded through assessments to the special 
benefit district. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Location Maps  
Bid Tabulation 
 

41



CITY OF HAYS

41ST ST

CA
NT

ER
BU

RY
 D

R

E 13TH ST

W 13TH ST

41ST ST

W 27TH ST E 27TH ST
MA

IN
 ST

OLD HWY 40

E 8TH ST

OLD HWY 40

AL
T 

18
3

HA
LL

 S
T

I-70

VI
NE

 S
T

GE
NE

RA
L H

AY
S 

RD

RO
TH

 A
VE

240TH AVE

 MOUNT PLEASANT RD

 SPRING HILL RD
230TH AVE

GOLF COURSE RD

ALT 183

VI
NE

 S
T  C

OM
ME

RC
E 

PK
W

Y

I-70

GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION - DANBY LANE & JAGGER COURT

GOLDEN BELT ESTATES

5TH ADDITION

42



16

16

17

18

5

4

15

14

13

12

11

3

6

7

10

9

8

15

11

12

13

14

7

6

5

4

3

8

9

10

2

1

2

1

J
A
G

G
E
R
 
C
T

D
A
N

B
Y
 
L
N

14

3 4

5

6

13

12

1

2

3

14

13

12

10

9

7

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

4

5

15

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

16

14

12

10

8

15

13

11

18

17

2

4

6

8

10

12

3

5

7

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

12

10

8

2

4

6

1

2

4

3

1

1

2

3

4
5

1

2
4

3

5

6

1 2

4

3

5

18
17

16
15

14

13

1

2 4
3

5

1

2
3

4
5 6

8

9

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

13

12

11

10

2

1

7

8

9

12

11

10

9
17

18

14

10

20
19

18
17

16

5
4

3
2

1

5

432

1

2
3

4

5

6

8

9

10

1

1 2

3

11

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15
13

11

12

16

12

11

8

14 13

10

9

7

6

3

2

1

15

4

14

3

2

1

1

2

9

10
17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

11

10

9
8

18 20

22 24

7
6

5
4

3

2

1

2

6

8
10

12

14
16

4

3 5
7 9

11
13

15

17

19 21

20
14

15

16 17
18

19

13
11

9

7

53

1

2

4
6

8
10 12

14
16

23
21

19
17

15
13

11

9

75

3
1

3 5
7

9

11

13
15

17

191

18
14

16

22
20

4

12

8
6 10

2

4
6

8

10

12 14
16

18

20

22

21

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

21

23

25

6

8

10

12

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

1

3

2

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

5

7

10

8

6

4

22

23

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

21

23

25

27

29

31

33

35

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

13

10

16

12

14

18

15

20

24

22

26

28

34

36

30

32

3

1

12

11

9

7

5

15

13

16

14

8

2

4

6

10

18

20

17

19

21

23

21

33

27

25

23

31

29

35

12

8

2

4

6

10

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

32

6

9

5

7

4

2

13

15

11

10

8

12

1

3

17

23

25

33

29

31

27

35

21

19

32

14

16

18

22

20

30

28

26

24

36

34

6

9

5

7

4

2

11

8

1

3

23

2

4

6

8

10

12
14

16
18 20

22 24

28

27

31

32

33

34

1

2

18

17

11

14

16

18

9

11

15

3
2 1

1
2

3 4

4 3
2

1

10
11

12

8

5
6

7

9

6

9

1

14

17

15

13

11 9

7

5 3

1

14

12 10

8 6

4

2

1

3

5

7

911

10

9

8

7

6
5

4

3

2 1

6

8 4
2

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1

2

3

4

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1
2

3

1

13

12

11

10

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

12

14

18

16

5

4

3

2

1

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1

2

3

1

4

8

2

5

9

6

10

3

7

11

1

2

3

12
13

14 15
4

16
17

18
19 5

6

7

8

13
14

18

16

26

24

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

28

27

29

7

5

9

11

15

13

17

10

18

14

12

16

8

2

6

4

3

1

7

5

2

4

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

21

23

25

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

36

35

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

12

14

10

8

16

18

6

17

19

15

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

4

2

15

11

13

23

17

19

21

22

14

12

20

5

6

7

8

9

8

7

6 5

4

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

15

16

17
18

19

20

21 22

23

14

13

12

11

10

9

10

11

12

13

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

3

2

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2

3

2

1

4

5

6

9

7

8

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

1

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

17

15

13

11

9

7

5

3

2

4

6

8

2

4

6

8

10

1

3

5

7

9

10

8

6

4

9

7

5

5

3

7

13

15

11

9

17

6

2

4

10

8

12

14

18

16

1

6

4

2

8

10

5

7

1

3

9

2

4

1

18

16

14

19

20

21

1

2

4

6

8

1

3

5

7

9

3

5

10

17

15

13

11

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

3

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

10

18

17

16

11

12 13

14

15

1

2

3
4

5

6
7

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

35

34

33

32

30

29

28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21
20

19

18

17

16

15

14

31

13

12

11

10
98

1

2

3

7 6

5

4
3 2

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

13

10

11

12

1

2
3

4

5

67

8

4

5

6

7

8

9

9

8

10

2

7 6

5

4
3

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

3

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

7

7

7

7

7

15

14

13

12

11

10
9

8

8

9

9 8

14
13

1211
10

9
8

3

2

1
18

17

16

3

2

2

1

1

1

16

15
14

13

12

11

10

2

3

4

5
6

7

8

9

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

1

2

3

4

2

3

12
34

11

12 13

14

7
65

43
2

1

8

9

10

1112

13

14

15

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

17

19

21

23

25

27

29

31

33

35

1

5

3

4

2

1

5

3

7

9

11

13

15

17

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

1

5

3

7

9

11

10

8

6

4

2

1

3

2

1

5

3

7

9

11

13

15

17

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

5

6

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

5

4

3

2

1

D

C

B

A

7

6
5

8

7

6
54

32
1

8

7

6
54

3

8

9

10

11

12
13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

1

0

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

1
7

1
8

1
6

15

14

5

6

7

8

9

13

12

1
1

1
0

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

14

15

16

17
18

19

20

21

30

29

28

26

27

24

23

25

13

10

12

11

22

H
I
L
L

D
R
I
V
E

W

 

1

S

T

 

S

T

E

L

M

 

S

T

.

A
S
H

 
S
T

2
N

D
 S

T

3
R
D

 S
T

4
T
H

 
S
T

C

U

S

T

E

R

 

D

R

L

E

W

I

S

 

D

R

A

G

N

E

W

 

L

N

D

W

I

G

H

T

 

D

R

5

T

H

 

S

T

H

A

L

L

A

D

A

Y

 

S

T

W

A

L

N

U

T

 

S

T

W

 

3

R

D

 

S

T

W

 

4

T

H

 

S

T

F

O

R

T

 

S

T

A

S

H

 

S

T

U

N

I

O

N

 

P

A

C

I

F

I

C

 

R

R

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

1

3

T

H

 

S

T

1

2

T

H

 

S

T

C

O

L

L

E

G

E

 

D

R

S

O

U

T

H

 

C

A

M

P

U

S

 

D

R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C

A

M

P

U

S

 

D

R

P

A

R

K

 

S

T

6

T

H

 

S

T

1

0

T

H

 

S

T

L

Y

M

A

N

 

D

R

W
 2

7
T
H

 S
T

W
 4

1
S
T
 S

T

E
N

G
L
E
W

O
O

D

CASTILLIAN  BLVD

C

O

L

O

N

I

A

L

 

S

T

A

U

G

U

S

T

A

 

L

N

W 28TH ST

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

O

L

Y

M

P

I

C

 

L

N

T

A

M

 

 

O

'

S

H

A

N

T

E

R

 

D

R

W
 32ND ST

COUNTRY CLUB DR

PINEHURST ST

AMHURST    ST

E
L
D

O
R
A
D

O
 
L
N

F

A

I

R

W

A

Y

 

D

R

W
 38TH ST

W
 37TH ST

W
 36TH ST

W
 39TH ST

U

N

I

O

N

 

P

A

C

I

F

I

C

 

R

R

W

A

L

N

U

T

 

S

T

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

W 19TH  ST

W
 2

0
T
H

  S
T

W 21ST ST

W
 2

3
R
D

 S
T

W
 24TH

 ST

W

 

1

3

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

1

2

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

1

1

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

1

0

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

9

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

8

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

7

T

H

 

S

T

A
L
L
E
Y

W 30TH ST

W 31ST ST

E
L
M

 
S
T

W 35TH ST

W 39TH ST

W 36TH ST

W
 37TH ST

CANAL BLVD

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

W

 
2
9
T
H

 
S
T

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

 W
ASHINGTON CR

T
R
U

M
A
N

 
C
R

S
M

O
K
Y
 
H

I
L
L
 
D

R

W 45TH ST

A
D

A
M

S
 
D

R

W 46TH ST

J
E
F
F
E
R
S
O

N
 
D

R

S

M

O

K

Y

W 42ND ST

W
 43RD ST

ALLEY

ALLEY

U

.

S

.

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

1

8

3

 

A

L

T

E

R

N

A

T

E

AUGUSTA LN

W
 4

4
T
H

 S
T

T

A

M

A

R

A

C

 

 

C

R

E

L

M

 

S

T

E

L

M

 

S

T

F
I
L
L
M

O
R
E
 
D

R

H
A
R
R
I
S
O

N
 
S
T

L
A

R

N

E

D

 
C

I
R

W

 

4

5

T

H

 

S

T

V
I
S
T
A
 
D

R

N
E
W

T
O

N
 
C
I
R

W

 

9

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

8

T

H

 

S

T

W

 

7

T

H

 

S

T

L

E

W

I

S

 

D

R

D

W

I

G

H

T

 

D

R

L

Y

M

A

N

 

D

R

P

O

L

I

C

E

 

D

R

V
I
S
T
A
 
D

R

C

T

T

A

M

L
A
R
N

E
D

 
 
 
 
C
I
R

CLUBHO
USE D

R

I

N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

7

0

V
A
N

 
B
U

R
E
N

 
D

R

C
O

O
L
I
D

G
E
 
C
T

P

A

R

K

 

S

T

W

A

L

N

U

T

 

S

T

GREENBRIER  LN

OAKM
ONT ST

T
U

R
N

B
E
R
R
Y
 
L
N

T
O

R
R
E
Y
 
P
I
N

E
S
 
D

R

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION - DANBY LANE & JAGGER COURT

GOLDEN BELT ESTATES

5TH ADDITION

43



GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION - DANBY LANE & JAGGER COURT

GOLDEN BELT ESTATES

5TH ADDITION

44



BID TABULATION BIDS RECEIVED February 19, 2014, AT 3:00 PM  
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS
GOLDEN BELT ESTATES FIFTH ADDITION SANITARY SEWER, WATER AND STREET IMP.  
CITY OF HAYS PROJECT NO. 2013-13 DATE: 2-19-14  

APAC-KANSAS, INC. BRYANT & BRYANT J CORP
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE P.O. BOX 190 703 MCNAIR 1707 E. 1OTH 

HAYS, KS  67601 HALSTEAD, KS 67056 HAYS, KS 67601
   

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT
NO. DESCRIPTION & UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

SANITARY SEWER
1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $13,820.00 $13,820.00   $7,000.00 $7,000.00
2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00   $500.00 $500.00
3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $800.00 $800.00 $800.00 $800.00   $900.00 $900.00
15 Trenching 10'-12' 290.0 LF $18.00 $5,220.00 $20.00 $5,800.00   $15.00 $4,350.00
16 Trenching 12'-14' 979.0 LF $20.00 $19,580.00 $22.00 $21,538.00   $15.00 $14,685.00
17 Connect to Existing Sewer Line 2.0 EA $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,100.00 $6,200.00   $2,000.00 $4,000.00
18 Type I Manhole 5.0 EA $3,400.00 $17,000.00 $4,200.00 $21,000.00   $2,850.00 $14,250.00
19 Extra Depth Type I Manhole 33.4 LF $325.00 $10,855.00 $285.00 $9,519.00   $200.00 $6,680.00
20 4" Sanitary Sewer 1,796.0 LF $55.00 $98,780.00 $60.00 $107,760.00   $31.50 $56,574.00
21 8" Sanitary sewer 1,269.0 LF $24.00 $30,456.00 $16.00 $20,304.00   $15.00 $19,035.00
22 8"x 4" Wye 2.0 EA $150.00 $300.00 $110.00 $220.00   $160.00 $320.00
23 8"x 4" Combination Tee/Wye 32.0 EA $150.00 $4,800.00 $110.00 $3,520.00   $165.00 $5,280.00
24 4" Cap (Sanitary Sewer) 34.0 EA $100.00 $3,400.00 $65.00 $2,210.00   $40.00 $1,360.00
25 Silt Fence Barrier 1,340.0 LF $4.00 $5,360.00 $3.60 $4,824.00   $3.00 $4,020.00

TOTAL SANITARY SEWER IMPR. $216,551.00 $218,515.00  $138,954.00  
 

WATER
1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00   $5,400.00 $5,400.00
2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $550.00 $550.00   $250.00 $250.00
3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $800.00 $800.00 $800.00 $800.00   $900.00 $900.00
26 3" Water Line (Polyethylene) 460.0 LF $16.00 $7,360.00 $18.50 $8,510.00   $16.00 $7,360.00
27 4" Water Line (C900 PVC) 786.0 LF $22.00 $17,292.00 $17.00 $13,362.00   $18.00 $14,148.00
28 6" Water Line (DIP) 10.0 LF $50.00 $500.00 $60.00 $600.00   $35.00 $350.00
29 8" Water Line (C900 PVC) 536.0 LF $26.00 $13,936.00 $23.00 $12,328.00   $21.00 $11,256.00
30 4" x 4" Tee 2.0 EA $600.00 $1,200.00 $400.00 $800.00   $240.00 $480.00
31 8" x 6" Tee 2.0 EA $600.00 $1,200.00 $495.00 $990.00   $500.00 $1,000.00
32 3" x 4" Reducer 2.0 EA $300.00 $600.00 $225.00 $450.00   $150.00 $300.00
33 4" x 8" Reducer 2.0 EA $300.00 $600.00 $270.00 $540.00   $175.00 $350.00
34 8" Bend, 22.5 Degree 2.0 EA $600.00 $1,200.00 $330.00 $660.00   $275.00 $550.00
35 4" Cap (Water) 2.0 EA $300.00 $600.00 $230.00 $460.00   $60.00 $120.00
36 Connect to Existing Fitting 2.0 EA $800.00 $1,600.00 $680.00 $1,360.00   $1,250.00 $2,500.00
37 4" Gate Valve 2.0 EA $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $850.00 $1,700.00   $900.00 $1,800.00
38 6" Gate Valve 2.0 EA $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00   $1,070.00 $2,140.00

  

45



 
 

BID TABULATION (CONT.) APAC-KANSAS, INC. BRYANT & BRYANT J CORP
 ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE P.O. BOX 190 703 MCNAIR 1707 E. 1OTH 
GOLDEN BELT FIFTH ADDITION HAYS, KS  67601 HALSTEAD, KS 67056 HAYS, KS 67601

  (CONCRETE PVMT.)
ITEM QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT UNIT UNIT
NO. DESCRIPTION & UNIT PRICE TOTAL  TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

 
WATER (cont.)  

39 Fire Hydrant 2.0 EA $2,600.00 $5,200.00 $2,400.00 $4,800.00   $3,300.00 $6,600.00
40 Meter Set 34.0 EA $1,000.00 $34,000.00 $1,150.00 $39,100.00   $1,000.00 $34,000.00
41 Service Connection (1") 34.0 EA $200.00 $6,800.00 $190.00 $6,460.00   $225.00 $7,650.00
42 Service Saddle (1"x 4") 21.0 EA $200.00 $4,200.00 $170.00 $3,570.00   $175.00 $3,675.00
43 Service Saddle (1"x 8") 13.0 EA $200.00 $2,600.00 $190.00 $2,470.00   $210.00 $2,730.00
44 Service Line (1") 1,487.0 LF $10.00 $14,870.00 $7.00 $10,409.00   $13.00 $19,331.00

TOTAL WATER IMPROVEMENTS $125,958.00 $119,419.00  $122,890.00

STREETS
1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $12,400.00 $12,400.00   $7,500.00 $7,500.00
2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $550.00 $550.00   $500.00 $500.00
3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $4,100.00 $4,100.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00   $2,600.00 $2,600.00
4 Seeding & Mulching 8.5 AC $1,200.00 $10,200.00 $1,200.00 $10,200.00   $1,000.00 $8,500.00
5 Common Excavation 2,350.0 CY $6.00 $14,100.00 $4.60 $10,810.00   $7.00 $16,450.00
6 Embankment 205.0 CY $5.00 $1,025.00 $4.60 $943.00   $5.00 $1,025.00
7 Fly Ash 330.0 Tons $70.00 $23,100.00 $65.00 $21,450.00   $77.00 $25,410.00
8 Water (Fly Ash) 132.0 Mgal $12.00 $1,584.00 $12.00 $1,584.00   $12.00 $1,584.00
9 Manipulation (Fly Ash) 5,554.0 Tons $4.00 $22,216.00 $3.60 $19,994.40   $3.00 $16,662.00
13 Layback Curb & Gutter (AE) 2,751.9 LF $25.00 $68,797.50 $21.00 $57,789.90   $18.00 $49,534.20
14 Sidewalk, 6" (AE) 250.0 SF $12.00 $3,000.00 $6.00 $1,500.00   $4.40 $1,100.00

TOTAL STREET IMPROVEMENTS $160,122.50 $139,721.30  $130,865.20
   

ALTERNATE NO. 1
10 Concrete Pavement, 6" (AE) 4,333.5 SY $50.00 $216,675.00 $42.40 $183,740.40   $36.00 $156,006.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE NO. 1 $216,675.00 $183,740.40  $156,006.00

ALTERNATE NO. 2
11 Bituminous Surface Course, 2" 4,333.5 SY $16.00 $69,336.00 $12.70 $55,035.45    No Bid
12 Bituminous Base Course, 4" 4,333.5 SY $29.00 $125,671.50 $25.10 $108,770.85    No Bid

TOTAL ALTERNATE NO. 2 $195,007.50 $163,806.30  $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT w/ALT 1 $719,306.50 $661,395.70  $548,715.20
     

TOTAL PROJECT w/ALT 2 $697,639.00 $641,461.60  No Bid
 

46



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                     COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 9                MEETING DATE: 3-13-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Seventh Addendum to the City Manager’s Employment Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve the Seventh Addendum to City Manager Toby Dougherty’s Employment Agreement 
dated June 28, 2007, as presented. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The City Commission, upon the completion of a performance evaluation of the City Manager, 
has requested that the attached Seventh Addendum be attached to the City Manager’s 
existing Employment Agreement. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Mayor Steward 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Seventh Addendum to Employment Agreement 
 
 
 
            
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

47



SEVENTH ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

NOW ON this 13th day of March, 2014, this Seventh Addendum to Employment Agreement, 

between the City of Hays, Kansas, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Employer", 

and Toby R. Dougherty, hereinafter referred to as "Employee", is as follows: 

WHEREAS, the parties have heretofore entered into and executed an Employment 

Agreement dated June 28, 2007, providing for the employment of Employee as the City Manager of 

the City of Hays, Kansas, an Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated July 26, 2007, a Second 

Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated December 13, 2007, a Third Addendum to 

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2008, a Fourth Addendum to Employment Agreement, 

dated February 26, 2009, a Fifth Addendum to Employment Agreement dated March 8, 2012,and a 

Sixth Addendum to Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2013, as provided by law, and; 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid Agreement and its Addendums have certain provisions regarding 

compensation and contributions to deferred compensation which the parties now desire to amend, 

and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree that "Section 5. Salary" of the aforesaid Employment Agreement of the 

parties is amended and modified to provide for an increase of1.0% of the base salary of the year 

2014 as a cost of living adjustment (COLA), effective as of December 22, 2013, which is the 

beginning for the first payroll period in 2014. 

The parties further agree and stipulate that the aforesaid Employment Agreement of the 

parties and its Addendums shall continue in full force and effect in regards to all other provisions not 

otherwise amended by this Seventh Addendum to Employment Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Hays has caused this Seventh Addendum to 

48



SEVENTH ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
Page 2 
 
Employment Agreement, to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Seventh Addendum to Employment 

Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Hays has caused this Seventh Addendum to 

Employment Agreement, to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Seventh Addendum to Employment 

Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

EMPLOYER: 

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
 

By__________________________________ 
    KENT L. STEWARD 
    Mayor 

 
 

EMPLOYEE: 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
TOBY R. DOUGHERTY 
City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk  

49



 

50



  

COMMISSION INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 
TO: City Commission 

FROM: Toby Dougherty, CPM 
 City Manager  

 

DATE: March 6, 2014 

 
 

Attached are the following items: 
  

1. The minutes of the January 22, 2014 meeting of the Hays Recreation Commission Board. 
 

2. The minutes of the January 27, 2014 meeting of the Hays Housing Authority Board of 
Commissioners. 

  
3. The minutes of the February 3, 2014 meeting of the Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course 

Advisory Board.  
 

4. The minutes of the February 4, 2014 meeting of the Airport Advisory Committee. 
 

5. The Great Lakes On-Time Report for February 2014 is attached. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
ab 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

51



 

52



HAYS RECREATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

January 22, 2014 
 

Chair called the meeting to order at 12:04pm. 
Roll Call   
Chair   Jeff Briggs 
Vice-Chair  Lynn Maska 
Secretary  Mark Junk 
Commissioner  Nancy Jeter 
Commissioner Clint Albers 
Superintendent Roger Bixenman 
 
Vice-Chair  Lynn Maska arrived at the meeting at 12:10pm!  
Commissioner  Nancy Jeter left the meeting early! 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the agenda.  Second by Clint Albers.  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for 
December 19, 2013.  Second by Mark Junk.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to approve the minutes of the special meeting for January 
13, 2014.  Second by Mark Junk.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
Audience Participation 
No Audience Participation 
 
Written Communication 
No Written Communication  
 
Finances 
Financial Statement 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the financial statement for December 2013.  
Second by Nancy Jeter.  Motion carried 5-0.    
 
 Staff Reports 
Sports Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning sports. 
Program Director 
Information concerning all programming was shared with the board.  
Aquatics Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning aquatics. 
Wellness Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning wellness. 

53



Sports Complex Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning the sports complex.    
 
Superintendent 
Discussion was held on Employee Health Insurance options for 2014.   Also, an 
update was discussed on pool admission increases and on the new sports 
complex maintenance building.    
 
Unfinished Business 
No Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
Consider Health Insurance Options 
 Motion by Lynn Maska to approve paying additional employee taxes for Health 
Insurance fees.  Second by Nancy Jeter.  Motion carried 5-0.    
 
Consideration of Facility Planning for 2014 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to move forward with future facility planning for 2014.   
Second by Lynn Maska.  Nancy Jeter amended her motion and made a new 
motion to proceed forward and adopt the Resolution of Intent to enter into a 
Lease Purchase agreement.  Second by Lynn Maska.  Motion carried 5-0.   
 
Commissioner Nancy Jeter left the meeting! 
Board Member Reports 
None 
 
Other Action 
None 
 
Executive Session  
None 
   
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Mark Junk to adjourn the meeting.  Second by Clint Albers.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Roger Bixenman CPRP 
Superintendent 

 

54



55



56



Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course 
Advisory Board Meeting 

February 3, 2014 
 

In Attendance: 
Jim Krob, President          Jeff Boyle, Director, Parks Department     
Ron Speier, Vice President         Travis Haines, Parks Superintendent    
Karen Schueler, Secretary        Kerry Tiernan, Interim Golf Course Superintendent 
Bill Bieker           Rich Guffey, ProShop Manager, Tournament Chair   
Doug Huston                      
Ron Augustine, Men’s Association               
Janet Schmidt, Ladies Association (absent)      
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by President Jim Krob.   
Sharon Honeyman, FH Ladies Association Vice President, was present in lieu of Janet Schmidt.   
 

1.  Approval of the minutes from January meeting:  One correction needed:  Travis Haines was “present”, 
rather than “absent” at that meeting.   
 
2.  Board membership:  current status ‐  appointed members (3 year terms)  
Doug Huston 07/01/14    Bill Bieker  07/01/15        Ron Speier, 07/01/16  
Jim Krob 07/01/14    Karen Schueler 07/01/15  
Ron Augustine, Men’s Association  Janet Schmidt, Ladies Association      
 
3.  Old Business:      
The City of Hays approved the following at their meeting on January 16, 2014: 

 To proceed with a standard tournament greens fee of $15.00 per person for all tournaments held at the 
Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course. 

 To add Junior Golf Greens Fees, for an amount of $10.00, beginning March 1, 2014 at the Fort Hays 
Municipal Golf Course.   

 
Jeff reported that he met with JCorps regarding cart path repairs.  They recommended the carts be replaced 
with concrete.  A chip seal could be used temporarily, to prolong the life of the asphalt.  The path behind #1 
green is one of the worse places and needs to be removed and replaced.  JCorps recommended removing and 
replacing all the paths, which would be very expensive.   Jeff suggested that the paths be patched, and wait until 
fall to pour concrete.  There is not funding available to do it all, so will have to decide on specific areas.  The 
board was in support of this.   
 
4.  New Business:   

 Golf Course Superintendent:  Mike Cure has resigned his position.  Kerry Tiernan is serving as Interim.  
Jeff reported that the job position has been posted and they should be interviewing candidates before 
the end of the month.   

 

 Water Report:  Jeff has a 98 page study done concerning water and turf issues on the course, with 
recommendations.  He will report more on that in the future.   

  
5.  Pro‐Shop report:  Rich Guffey reported:    

57



 2

 

  Rounds Played   

  2014   2013  2012  Year‐to‐Date
Rounds Played 

Greens Fees Paid Total Greens  Fees 
for Year 

January  717  456  23   

         

            2013 / 21,945
2012 / 23, 649 
2011 / 22,990 
 

2013 
$109,446.00 
2012 
$115, 742.00 

 
Nice weather resulted in a good month on the course.   
Memberships are due by March 1st.  There may be a few cart sheds available.   
Senior Golf will begin on Tuesday, April 1st, 9:00 am, weather permitting.   
 
7.  Tournament report:     Rich Guffey submitted the proposed tournament schedule for 2014.  Bill Bieker made 
a motion to approve the schedule, with Ron Speier seconding; unanimously approved.  Note:  The 2‐A State Golf 
Tournament on May 27th will pay the fees presented to them last year, rather than the increase of this year.   
 
7.  Course report:  Kerry Tiernan:  reported that the irrigation system was charged up during the week of 
January 20th.  They hand watered greens rather than use the sprinklers, so that the heads would not freeze up 
and break.   Several trees were trimmed or removed over the past month.  Which led to further discussion about 
the evergreens along #5 fairway, and the “pathetic” trees behind #8 green.   
 
9.  Parks Department update:  Jeff plans to get an estimate on repairs of the golf cart paths.   

 Golf Course improvement Balance  ‐ 1/23/14 
    Cart Path Trail Fees:    $42,734.54 
    Donation Money:    $1,525.85 includes 

 Putting Green (Men’s Association):  $1,224.00 

 Trees:  $ 226.41 

 Carry over from previous tournament funds:  $75.44 
 
Doug noted that the Men’s Association has added $1,000 towards the putting green.   
  
10.  Ladies’ Association report:    Sharon reported the FHLGA as inactive at this time.   
Karen asked Jeff about the status of the request to remove the old carpet in the ladies bathroom and replace 
with tile.  The Ladies Association is willing to pay for this.  Rich said he has decided to have the carpet in the 
whole pro shop professionally cleaned this year, rather than replace any.  Jeff said the ideal situation would be 
to totally redesign and remodel the pro shop to make better use of space.  The men’s bathroom is also in need 
of upgrading; there isn’t enough storage space; and there is not a need for so many lockers.   When the patio 
cover was added a few years back, the plan was to someday enclose that.  If that could be done, it would free up 
space inside.  But any of this would be very expensive.     
 
11.  Men’s Association report:      Ron Augustine:  inactive   
 
Add‐ons:   none 
  
 Adjourned:  6:15 pm.     
 
 Submitted by Karen Schueler, Secretary                       February 13, 2014  

58



Airport Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 4, 2014 
 
Members Present; 
Dan Stecklein 
I.D. Creech 
Lyle Noordhoek 
Guest - Brandon Goering from Great Lakes 
Chris Springer 
Guest - Ron Melick City Commissioner 
John Braun 
Mike Konz 
Bob Johnson 
Errol Wuertz 
Gary Wentling 
Don Benjamin 
 
1.) Call to Order by Chairman. 
 
2.) Approval of January 6, 2014 Meeting Minutes. 
Approved. 
 
3.) Discuss Boarding Report. 
 Our numbers are down from last year. Brandon Goering reported that Great Lakes is 
closing their Minneapolis operations and moving all operations to Denver.  Great Lakes has 100 
pilots in their training process and they will be system ready to fly next month.  Brandon said the 
reason boardings are down is because of the shortage of pilots.  The training program Great 
Lakes has for pilots is exceptional and pilots leaving Great Lakes have no difficulty finding work 
if they leave Great Lakes. After Great Lakes has pilot positions filled, it will have to regain the 
trust of the community.  Brandon reported that the FAA’s decision to change pilot requirements 
is the root cause of the pilot shortage.  When asked if Great Lakes is looking at larger aircraft 
Brandon said that Great Lakes does not have plans for larger aircraft at this time.   
 
4.) Discuss Fly-In. 
 The fly-in is scheduled for June 7, 2014.  Food will be served again.  Pilots will be served 
in the fire station.  Bob Johnson reported that he is waiting for a response from the military for 
their participation.  Donations are being solicited from aviation suppliers.  This year there will 
not be any carnival type events.  The event will be published on 23 web sites and flyers will be 
sent out next month.  There could be aircraft and helicopter rides and there are 6 warbirds in 
Kansas EAA chapters that may make it to the fly-in.  Chris Springer said Hays Aircraft may be 
selling orientation flights. 
 
5.) Discuss Terminal Expansion. 
 A plan has been submitted to the FAA for the terminal expansion project.  On 
Wednesday, the FAA, Burns McDonnell and the City of Hays will conference call to discuss the 
latest plan.  The project will be 60% to 65% eligible for FAA funding.  Project will be in the $1.1 

59



million dollar range but cost updates are needed.  Bids will be accepted for the project in April.  
The City will need secure bids before the FAA will approve the project.  
  
 Both the TSA and Great Lakes are involved so the airline service will continue to operate 
during the construction process.  Construction will probably take about 8 months.   
 
6.) Dissuss Essential Air Service Funding. 
 No new news to report on.  Waiting on the Department of Transportation to present their 
position. 
 
7.) Discuss Airport Promotion. 
 The City wants to have at least 4 events per year to help maintain the public support of 
the airport.  Still trying to think of a fall event.  The airport wants to become more involved in 
Chamber of Commerce events to let the public know what is going on at the airport. 
 
8.) Add-Ons. 
 Ron Mellick - The City Commission is waiting to hear the DOT’s recommendations for 
Essential Air Service.  The City is leaning towards getting Sky West into Hays.  The public is 
disappointed with the service from Great Lakes. 
 
 Brandon Goering - Great Lakes understands the City’s position in their disappointment 
with their performance.  They are also awaiting to hear the DOT’s decision. 
 
 John Braun - This is the time of year to present our capital improvement plan to the FAA.  
Some projects will have to be moved into the future because of limited funds.  If we do get jet 
service in Hays, we may have to increase the size of apron or use a tug to move jet a safe 
distance from terminal before starting engines.   
 
 Bob Johnson - The Hays airport is getting complaints about Great Lakes service because 
people are finding it hard to locate Great Lakes phone number.  Also Great Lakes problems 
started long before the pilot shortage.  The recent years we had 10,000 boardings would not have 
been possible without local help. 
 
9.) Schedule Next Meeting. 
March 3, 2014 at 6:30 PM. 
 
10.)  Adjourn. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Errol Wuertz 
 

60



Great Lakes Airlines On-Time Report

 
 

Feb-14 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Under 
15 Min   

On-
Time

15-44 
Min 
Late

45-74 
Min 
Late

75 -104 
Min 
Late

105 
Min 
Late 
or 

more Canceled

Mon-Fri
745 C C C C C C C C x C C C C C C C C C C C 5% 95%

1016 x L L x C L L L x L x x x L L C x L C x 40% 15% 10% 10% 10% 15%
1026 L L L x C L L L x L x x x L L C L L C x 30% 25% 5% 10% 15% 15%
1311 x C L x x C x x x x C x x x C C x x x C 65% 5% 30%
1321 x C L x x C x x x x C x x L C C x x x C 60% 5% 5% 30%
1425 x C L x L C x x x x C x x x C C x x x C 60% 5% 5% 30%
1435 x C L x L C x x x x C x x L C C x x x C 55% 10% 5% 30%
1626 C L L x x L x x x C x x x C x L C x x C 55% 15% 5% 25%
1636 C L L x x L x x x C x x x C L L C x x C 50% 10% 15% 25%
2016 C C C C x C C x C C C C C C C C C C C L 10% 5% 85%

Saturday
745 C x C C 25% 75%

1250 C C C x 25% 75%
1300 C C C x 25% 75%
1406 L x L L 25% 25% 50%
1416 L x L L 25% 25% 25% 25%
1931 C C C C 100%

Sunday
745 C C C C 100%

1250 x x x C 75% 25%
1300 x x x C 75% 25%
1626 C C C C 100%
1636 C C C C 100%
2016 C C C C 100%

Average 39% 8% 5% 3% 2% 43%
No time logged =na
Late=L Total Flights - 246 95 19 12 7 6 107
On Time=x
Canceled=C Percentage of flights delayed or canceled 61%

On time means </= 15 minutes

61


	3-13-14 City Commission Meeting Agenda
	2-27-14 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	Mayoral Appointment for Approval
	Proposed Geist Addition Annexation
	Geist Addition Rezoning - A-L to C-O
	Geist Addition Final Plat 
	Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition - Award of Bid
	Seventh Addendum to the City Manager's Employment Agreement
	Commission Informational Memorandum
	1-22-14 HRC Board Meeting Minutes
	1-27-14 Hays Housing Authority Board Meeting Minutes 
	2-3-14 Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Advisory Board Meeting Minutes
	2-4-14 Airport Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
	Great Lakes Airlines On-time Report



